EARLY RESOLUTION CONCILIATION AGREEMNT
Between

The U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OFFICE OF FEDERAL CONTRACT COMPLIANCE PROGRAMS

And

SHAMROCK FOODS COMPANY

PART I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (“OFCCP”) is currently evaluating
Shamrock Farms Dairy located at 2228 N. Black Canyon Hwy, Phoenix, AZ 85009 (“Phoenix
facility”), and Shamrock Foods Company California Foods located at 12400 Riverside Drive,
Eastvale, CA 91752 (“Eastvale facility”) and is alleging that Shamrock Foods Company’s
(“Shamrock™) establishiments were not in compliance with certain provisions of Executive Order
11246, as amended (“E.O. 11246” or “Executive Order”), and its implementing regulations at 41
Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) Sections 60-1 —60-3. 1n the interest of resolving the alleged
violations without engaging in further Jegal proceedings and in exchange for sufficient and
valuable consideration described in this document, OFCCP and Shamrock enter into this
Conciliation Agreement (“Agreement”), and the parties agree to all the terms herein. The
attachments to this Agreement are deemed incorporated into this Agreement.

PART II. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. Tn exchange for Shamrock’s fulfillment of all obligations in the Agreement, OFCCP
agrees not to institute administrative or judicial enforcement proceedings under E.O.
11246, based on the alleged violations described in more detail in Part IV below.
However, OFCCP has the right to initiate legal proceedings to enforce the Agreement
itself or to correct and obtain relief for the violations described in Part IV if Shamrock
violates this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement precludes OFCCP from initiating
enforcement proceedings based on future compliance evaluations or complaint
investigations, including during the five-year exemption period if OFCCP deems that
Shamrock is in breach of the Agreement. In exchange for Shamrock’s fulfillment of all
obligations in Parts II] and 1V of the Agreement, OFCCP further agrees not to initiate
any new audits at the locations listed in III.B until at least 60 days after Shamrock
subimits the final progress report described in Part VI of this Agreement and the OFCCP
confirms to Shamrock that it has fully complied with the terms of this Agreement.

B. Shamrock agrees that OFCCP may review its compliance with this Agreement. As part
of suchreview, OFCCP may require written reports, inspect the premises, interview
witnesses, and examine and copy documents as may be relevant to the matter under
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investigation and pertinent to Shamrock’s compliance. Given reasonable notice,
Shamrock will permit access to its premises during normal business hours for these
purposes and will provide OFCCP with all reports and documents required.

. This Agreement does not constitute an admission by Shamroek of any violation of or
noncompliance with any laws or of any other wrongdoing whatsaever, including but not
limited to any violation of E.O. 11246, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
as amended (“Section 503”), the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act
of 1974, as amended (“VEVRAA™) and their implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R.
Chapter 60, or any other laws, nor has there been an adjudicated finding that Shamrock
violated any laws,

. Shamrock understands that nothing in this Agreement relieves Shamrock of its
obligation to fully comply with the requirements of E.O. 11246, Section 503, VEVRAA,
their implementing regulations, and other applicable employment laws.

i, Shamrock promises not to harass, intimidate, threaten, discriminate against, or

otherwise retaliate against any individual because the individual benefits from this
Apreement, or files a complaint or participates in any investigation or proceeding under
E.O. 11246, Scction 503 and/or VEVRAA, or engages in any activity listed at 4} C.F.R.
§ 60-1.32(a).

. OFCCP and Shamrock (“the parties”) understand the terms of this Agreement and enter
into it voluntarily,

. This Agreement and its attachments contain the complete and final understanding of the
parties with respect to the matters referenced therein, This Agreement contains all of the
terms by which the parties are bound and it supersedes all prior written or oral
negotiations and agreements. There will be no modifications or amendments to this
Agreement unless they are in writing and signed by all parties, If an administrative error
is found, OFCCP will work in good faith with all parties to make the corrections.

. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are rendered unlawful or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will remain in full force and effect.

This Agreement becomes effective on the day it is signed by the Regional Director of the
Pacific Region (the “Etfective Date”).

This Agreement wil] expire sixty (60) days after Shamrock submits the final progress
report required in Part VI, below, unless OFCCP notifies Shamrock in writing prior to
the expiration date that Shamrock has not fulfilled all of its obligations under the
Agreement, in which case the Agreement is automatically extended until the date
OFCCP determines Shamrock has met all of its obligations under the Agreement.

. Each party shall bear its own fees and expenses with respect fo this matter.
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L. If Shamrock violates this Agreement:
1. The procedures set forth at 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.34 will govern:

a. If OFCCP believes that Shamrock violated any term of the Agreement while it
was in effect, OFCCP will send Shamrock a written notice stating the alleged
violations and summarizing any supporting evidence.

b. Shamrock will have 15 days from receipt of such notice to demenstrate in
writing that it has not violated the Conciliation Agreement, unless such a delay
would result in irreparable injury to the employment rights of affected
employees or applicants.

e. If Shamrock is unable to demonstrate that it has not violated the Agreement, or
if OFCCP alleges irreparable injury, enforcement proceedings may be initiated
immediately without issuing a Show Cause Notice or proceeding through any
other requirement for those establishments with an open review at the time of
this agreement and seek a full make-whole remedy for victims.

d. OFCCP may seek enforcement of this Agreement itself and is not required to
present proof of any underlying violations resolved by this Agreement.

2. Shamrock may be subject to the sanctions set forth in Section 209 of the Executive
Order, and/or other appropriate relief for violation of this Agreement.

M. The parties understand and agree that nothing in this Agreement is binding on other
governmental departments or agencies other than the United States Department of
Labor, and cannot be used as evidence that Shamrock is not in violation of any
applicable federal, state, or local laws, including but not limited to E.O. 11246, Section
503, VEVRAA, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

N. This Agreement is limited to the facts of this case. Neither this Agreement, nor any part
of the negotiations that occurred in connection with this Agreement, shall constitute
admissible evidence with respect to any OFCCP policy, practice or position in any
lawsuit, legal proceeding, administrative proceeding, compliance evaluation or audit,
except for legal or administrative proceedings concerning the enforcement or
interpretation of this specific Agreement.

0. All references to “days” in this Agreement are calendar days. If any deadline for an
obligation scheduled to he performed under this Agreement falls on a weekend or a
Federal holiday, that deadline will be extended to the next business day.
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PART III. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. Shamrock agrees to an in-depth review of each establishment contained in the AAPs
listed below (in Part III B} to ensure selections practices and/or alleged violations similar
to those identified in Part IV of this Agreement are identified. If like violations are
identified, Shamrock agrees to implement corrective actions at all of its establishments
where violations were found, consistent with the remedy provisions of this Agreement.

B. Facility List

Company
Code Business Name Address City State Zip
2 Shamrock Company - Arizana Foods 2540 N 29th Ave Phoenix AZ 85008
g9 Shamrock Company - New Mexico 2 Shamrock way NW Albuquergue | NM 87121
6 Shamrock Company - Arizona Meats 2926 W Encanio Bivd Phoenix AZ 85009
1 Shamrock Company - Colorado Systems | 5005 Klamath St Denver £o 80221
1 Shamrock Farms - Dairy 2228 N Black Canyon Hwy | Phoenix AZ 85009
7 Dairy Maid 1910 W. Mountain View Rd | Phoenix AZ 85021
VA Dairy Virginia Plant 318 Mill Place Parkway Yerona VA 24482
20 Shamrack Company - California Foods 12400 Riverside Dr Eastvale CA 91752
17 Sacramento Systems Business 856 National Dr Sacramenfo CA 95834
Commerce
Shamrock Company - Colorado 5199 lvy St City Co 80022
Shamrock Company - Jensen Foods 167 W Bromley Lane Brighton CO 80601
Commerce
12 Shamrock Company - Colorado Meats 5193 lvy St City Co 80022
22 Portland Systems Business 18332 NE Rafael St Portland OR 87230
29 Shamrock Foods - Boise 1495 North Hickory Avenue | Meridian iD 83642

C. OFCCP will not schedule any Shamrock establishments listed in Part 11I.B, and the
establishments listed in Attachment E or facilities acquired by Shamrock foods during the
term of thie Agreement, for a compliance evaluation for a five-year period from the
effective date of the Agreement. (See Attachment E for a full list of covered
establishments.)

D. The five-year scheduling exemption is limited to regularly scheduled compliance
evaluations and OFCCP retains the right to investigate complaints of discrimination at
establishments covered by this Agreement under E.O. 11246, Section 503, and
VEVRAA.

E. If Shamrock violates the terms of this Agreement, OFCCP reserves the right to bring an
enforcement action per the terms of 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.34 and the five-year scheduling
exemption will be void.

E. This Agreement will not relieve Shamrock from its annual ongoing OFCCP requirements

of equal employment opportunity through affirmative action and non-discrimination
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across its entire workforce, including establishing, maintaining and monitoring up-to-date
AAPs.

PART IV. PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND REMEDIES

A. ALLEGED HIRING DISCRIMINATION

During the compliance evaluations at the establishments Jisted in Part |, OF CCP reviewed
employment policies, practices, and records; interviewed management, human resources,
and non-management employees; analyzed applicant, hiring and selection data and/or
conducied an onsite inspection of the worksite. Based upon the information gathered
during these activities, OFCCP evaluated and analyzed the applicant, hiring and selection
data and found statistically significant hiring disparitics hased on gender and race in the
job titles helow.

1. Shamrock Farms Dairy Phoenix facility

GENERAL PLANT — OFCCP alleges that Shamrock discriminated against
female applicants for its General Plant positions during the January 1, 2017
through December 31, 2018 period at its Phoenix facility. Specifically, during
the compliance review, OFCCP found statistically significant differences in the
hiring rates of female applicants when compared to similarly qualified male
applicants for the job, resuliing in standard deviations of [[jiieainst female
applicants with a shortfall of 17 hires over the two year period.

COLD ROOM ORDER SELECTOR - OFCCP alleges that Shamrock
discriminated against female applicants for its Cold Room Order Sclector
positions during the January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 period at its
Phoenix facility. Specificeally, during the compliance review, OFCCP found
statistically significant differences in the hiring rates of female applicants when
compared to similarly qualified male applicants for the job, resulting in standard
deviations of [ gainst female applicants with a shortfall of 7 hires.

COLD ROOM ORDER SELECTOR - OFCCP alleges that Shamrock
discriminated against Black applicants for its Cold Room Order Selector
positions during the January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 period at its
Phoenix facility. Specifically, during the compliance review, OFCCP found
statistically significant differences in the hiring rates of Black applicants when
compared to similarly qualified Hispanic applicants for the job, resulting in
standard deviations of [l gainst Black applicants with a shortfall of 6 hires.

After examining personnel records and conducting interviews, OFCCP
determined that Shamrock’s use of an online assessment test with no proven job
validity, the practice of carrying over applicants’ previous assessment scores
when they applied for new jobs, and a failure to use uniform procedures during
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its screening and interview processes had the effect of discriminating against
female and Black applicants listed in Attachment A1 for hiring into the General
Plant and Cold Room Order Selector positions. This is a violation of 41 CF.R.
§ 60-1.4(a)(1), 60-3.3, and 60-3.5.

2. Shamrock Company California Foods Eastvale facility

GENERAL WAREHOUSE NIGHTS - OFCCP alleges that Shamrock Foods
discriminated against Female applicants for its General Warehouse Nights
positions during the January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 period at its
Eastvale facility. Specifically, during the compliance review, OFCCP found
statistically significant differences in the hiring rates of Female applicants when
compared to similarly qualified Male applicants for the job, resulting in standard
deviations of [Jiieainst Female applicants with a shortfall of 17 hires over a
one vear period.

DELIVERY DRIVER - OFCCP alleges that Shamrock Foods discriminated
against Black and White applicants for its Delivery Driver positions during the
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 period at its Eastvale facility.
Specifically, during the compliance review, OFCCP found statistically
significant differences in the hiring rates of Black and White applicants when
compared to similarly qualified Hispanic applicants for the job, resulting in
standard deviations of gainst Black applicants with a shortfall of 6 hires
and standard deviationsomgainst White applicants with a shortfall of §
hires.

GENERAIL, WAREHOUSE NIGHTS — OFCCP alleges that Shamrock Foods
discriminated against Black and White applicants for its General Warehouse
Nights positions during the January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 period
at its Castvale facility. Specifically, during the compliance review, OFCCP
found statistically significant differences in the hiring rates of Black and White
applicants when compared to similarly qualified Tispanic applicants for the job,
resulting in standard deviations of [ gainst Black applicants with a shortfall
of 14 hires and standard deviations of [jjifeainst White applicants with a
shortfall of 6 hires.

Based on the above, OFCCP alleges a violation of 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.4(a)(1).
3. FINANCIAL REMEDY FOR AFFECTED CLASS:

Shamrock must provide make-whole relief to all identified victims of
discrimination to include the following remedies.

a. Noftice:
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Within sixty (60) calendar days of the Lffective Date of this Agreement,
Shamrock must notify the affected class listed in Attachment Al of the terms of
this Agreement by mailing, via certified mail, to each individual in the affected
class the: Notice to Affected Class (Attachment B1 “Notice™), Information
Verification & Employment Interest Forin (Attachment C1 “Interest Form™),
Release of Claims Under Executive Order 11246 (Attachment D “Release™) and
a postage paid returp envelope.

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Shamrock must notify the affected class listed in Attachment A2 of the terms of
this Agreement by mailing, via certified mail, to each individual in the affected
class the: Notice to Affected Class (Attachment B2 “Notice™), Information
Veritfication & Employment Interest Form (Attachment C2 “Interest Form™) and
a postage paid retum envelope.

No later than seven (7) calendar days after expiration of the response deadline
set out in the Interest Form(s), Shamrock will notify OFCCP of all letters
returned as undeliverable, and will provide OFCCP with a list of the individuals
in the affected class who have not yet responded to the Notice and/or have not
returned a signed Interest Form and Release. OFCCP will then attempt to obtain
and provide updated addresses to Shamrock within thirty (30) days of receiving
the list from Shamrock. Shamrock agrees to mail, by certified mail, a second
Notice, Interest Form, Release, and postage paid return envelope to all
individuals for whom updated addresses were obtained within seven (7) days of
receiving the updated addresses from OFCCP.

Eligibility. All members of the affected class (listed on Attachment Al) who
sign and return the Interest Form and Release to Shamrock within thirty (30}
calendar days of the postmarked date on the envelope containing the first or
second Notice and Interest Form (“Eligiblc Class Members™) will receive a share
of the monetary settlement and, if indicating an interest in employment, will be
eligible to be considered for a job pursuant to this Agreement. Eligible female
class members of the General Warehouse Nights positions (listed on Attachment
A2} will not be considered for monetary settiement, but will be eligible to be
considered for a job. If an individual receives, but does not return the Interest
Form and Release to Shamrock within thirty (30) calendar days of the
postmarked date on the envelope containing the first or second Natice and
Interest Form(s), he/she will no longer be entitled to payment and/or
consideration for a job under this Agreement.

. Within seven (7) calendar days after the response deadline set out in the Interest
Form(s), Shamrock will provide OFCCP with a list of the Eligible Class
Members (individuals who returmed the Interest Form and Release by the
deadline). Within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the list, OFCCP will
approve the final list of Eligible Class Members or discuss with Shamrock any
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issues necessary to finalize the list, such as the inclusion or exclusion of certain
individuals. Al} Eligible Class Members listed in attachment Al arc entitled to
their share of the monetary settlement regardless of whether or not they are
interested in employment with Shamrock.

. Monctary Settlement. Shamrock agrees to distribute $858,492.93, including
$818.691.26 in back pay and $39,801.67 in interest, as specified below, less legal
deductions required by law from back pay only (such as federal, state and/ or
local taxes and the Eligible Class Members’ respective share of FICA taxes), in
equal shares, for the respective positions, among all Eligible Class Members on
the final approved list. Shamrock will pay the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
the employer’s share of social security withholdings and wil! mail each Eligible
Class Member an IRS W-2 Form reporting the portien of the payment
representing back pay and an [RS Form 1099 for the portion of the payment
representing interest. These IRS forms will be mailed to Eligible Class Member
in accordance with IRS requirements. Shamrock will disburse the monetary
scttlement within thirty (30) calendar days after OFCCP approves the final list
of Eligible Class Members.

Phoenix Facility
| Position Back Pay Interest Total
Cold Room
Order Selector | $111,656.54 | $4,882.22 $116,538.76
General Plant | § 199.098.13 | $6,301.00 $205,399.13
Eastvale Facility
Position Back Pay Interest Total B
Drivers $217,177.03 $12,756.04 $229,933.07
General
Warehouse
Nights $290,759.56 $15,862.41 3$306,621.97 |

Within seven (7) calendar days of Shamrock’s receipt of a check to an Eligible
Class Member retumed as undeliverable, Shamrock will notify OFCCP of this

fact via e-mail sent to Compliance Officer |- B do!.gov
OIVEAOION -

for the Phoenix facility and Compliance Officer t
EIESEENEN  do! .zov for the Eastvale facility. Any check that remains
uncashed (20 days after the initial date the check was mailed to the Eligible
Class Member will be void. With respect to any uncashed funds, Shamrock will
make a second distribution within thirty (30) days of all checks either being
cashed or becoming void, in equal shares to all Eligible Class Members who
cashed their first check, regardless of the position for which they applied. If the
remaining amount equates to less than twenty dollars ($20.00) per class member,
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Shamrock shall use the money to provide equal employment opportunity training
and must notify OFCCP of the expenditure. These funds may only be used for
training not already specified in this Agreement.

d. Employment. Following Shamrock’s exhaustion of all recall obligations
resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic-related furloughs or layoffs, Shamrock
will initiate the preferential hiring obligations under this section. At that time,
as positions become available, Shamrock will consider qualified Eligible Class
Members not currently employed by Shamrock’s Phoenix or Eastvale facilities,
who express an interest in employment with Shamrock until:

» Seventeen (17) Female Eligible Class Members are hired into General Plant
positions at the Phoenix facility;

¢ Six (6) Black Eligible Class Members are hired into Cold Room Order
Selector positions at the Phoenix facility;

¢ Seven (7) Female Eligible Class Members are hired into Cold Room Order
Selector positions at the Phoenix facility;

e Seventeen (17) Female Eligible Class Members are hired into General
Warehouse Nights positions at the Eastvale facility;

» Six (6) Black Eligible Class Members are hired into Delivery Driver
positions at the Eastvale facility;

e Five (5) White Eligible Class Members are hired into Delivery Driver
positions at the Eastvale facility;

e Fourteen (14) Black Eligible Class Members are hired into General
Warehouse Nights positions at the Eastvale facility; and

e Six (6) White Eligible Class Members are hired into General Warchouse
Nights positions at the Eastvale facility

or until the list of Eligible Class Members expressing an interest in employment
is exhausted, whichever occurs first. Eligible Class Members will be considered
based on the date of their original application. If Shamrock is not able to hire
the specified amount or exhausts the list of Eligible Class Members expressing
an interest in employment within thirty-six (36) months, OFCCP may extend the
hiring terms of this Agreement until Shamrock satisfies its hiring requirement(s)
or exhausts the list(s), whichever occurs first.

Eligible Class Members must meet the minimum qualifications of the position(s)
as of the date the hiring decision is being made. In addition, Eligible Class
Members must be able to pass any pre-employment screenings, such as
background checks and/or drug screens, that are in place as of the date the hiring
decision is being made. Any minimum qualifications and pre-employment
screenings in place must comply with standing regulations and laws.

Eligible Class Members will be allowed at least two weeks to report for work
after receiving a written job offer from Shamrock. The Eligible Class Members
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hired into General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, General Warehouse Nights,
and Delivery Driver positions pursuant to this Agreement must be paid the
current wage rate for those positions, and must be provided with the same
benefits and opportunity to earn overtime and shift differentials as other General
Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, General Warehouse Nights, and Delivery
Driver employees. In addition, all Eligible Class Members hired must receive
retroactive seniority using the date of their original application as their hire date
for all purposes, including job retention, job bidding and benefits.

4. NON-MONETARY REMEDIES:

Shamrock will ensure that all applicants are afforded equal employment opportunity.
Shamrock agrees to continue and/or to implement the corrective actions detailed
below.

a, Hiring Process

i

Eliminate Allegedly Discriminatory Hiring Procedures: Shamrock agrees to
comply with all OFCCP regulations concerning hiring procedures, including
41 C.F.R. § Part 60-3. Shamrock will not use any hiring procedure that has an
adverse impact, as defined in 41 CF.R. § 60-3.4(D), on applicants of a
particular race or gender unless it properly validates the procedure pursuant to
these regulations.

Review and Revisions Required: To the extent the below has not already been
completed and reported to OFCCP, Shamrock will establish or revise, in
writing, the practices, policies and procedures, including the use of non-
validated assessments that show adverse impact, it uses to select applicants
for General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General
Warehouse positions (hereinafier “Revised Tliring Process™). Specifically,
Shamrock will:

a) Create a job description and hiring process for General Plant, Cold
Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General Warehouse
positions, which describes the essential functions; the minimum
qualifications including required skills and certifications; and the
criteria used in each step of the hiring process, including any application
screens, interviews, tests, credit checks, review of criminal history,
reference checks, testing, or other hiring procedure;

b) Develop specific, job-related qualification standards for General Plant,
Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General Warehouse
positions that reflect the duties, functions, and competencies of the
position to minimize the potential for race and/or gender stereotyping or
other unlawful discrimination;
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¢) Ensure all policies and qualification standards are uniformly applied to
all applicants; and

d) List clearly on its recruiting materials and job postings the minimum
qualifications, including required skills and certifications.

Recordkeeping and Retention: Shamrock will write and implement procedures
to ensure applicants are tracked and decisions are documented at each step in
the hiring process. Shamrock will write and implement procedures to ensure
documents are retained in accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.12(a) and 41
C.F.R. § 60-3.

Training: Within one hundred and fifty days (150) days of the Effective Date
of this Agreement, Shamrock must train all individuals involved in any way in
recruiting, selecting, or tracking applicants for General Plant, Cold Room
Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General Warehouse positions on the
Revised Hiring Process. The training will include instruction in: the proper
implementation of the recruitment, tracking and hiring procedures; neutral
application of the specified qualifications and criteria that will be used at each
step in the hiring process; procedures to be used to document the decisions
made at each step in the hiring process; and the procedures to be used o ensure
that documents are retained in accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.12(a) and 41
C.F.R. § Part 60-3. Shamrock will meet with management and all individuals
responsible for the hiring process and review its equal employment obligations
and nondiscrimination policies related to hiring. Specific attention will be
directed to ensure that female applicants who benefit from the provisions of
this agreement are not retaliated against.

Monitoring: If there is statistically significant adverse impact in the overall
hiring process for the General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery
Driver, or General Warehouse positions, Shamrock agrees to monitor hiring
rates at each step of ils hiring process for the position(s) with an overall
statistically significant adverse impact. Where it is determined that a hiring
procedure has an adverse impact, as defined in 41 C.F.R. § 60-3.4(D), on the
hiring of applicants of a particular race, ethnicity, or gender, Shamrock will
eliminate the procedure, choose an alternative procedure, or validate the
procedure in accordance with the Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection
Procedures codified at 41 C.F.R. Part 60-3. Shamrock agrees to maintain and
make available to OFCCP records concerning the impact of the hiring process
for General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General
Warehouse positions at each facility covered by this Agreement, where such
positions exist. This includes the number of persons hired by race and gender,
the number of applicants who applied by race and gender, and the hiring
procedures utilized. This information will be maintained until the expiration
of this Agreement or as long as required by the regulations, whichever is later.
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B. RECORDKEEPING

1.

STATEMENT OF ALLEGED VIOLATION. At least since January 1, 2017, and
continuing thereafter, Shamrock allegedly failed to preserve all personnel or
employment records for a period of not less than two years from the date of the
making of the record or the personnel action involved, whichever occurs later, in
violation of 41 CFR § 60-1.12(a). Specifically, Shamrock allegedly failed to
preserve all documents created under its selection system for General Plant and
Cold Room Order Selector applicants at its Phoenix facility, including records
related to individual phases of its overall hiring procedures.

REMEDY. Shamrock agrees to preserve and maintain all personnel and
employment records for a period of not less than two years from the date of the
making of the record or the personnel action involved, whichever occurs latet, in
accordance with the requirements of 41 CFR § 60-1.12(a).

C. IDENTIFIYING PROBLEM AREAS & ACTION-ORIENTED PROGRAMS

1.

STATEMENT OF ALLEGED VIOLATION. At least since Januaty 1, 2017, and
continuing thereafter, Shamrock’s Phoenix and Eastvale facilities allegedly failed
to comply with 41 C.F.R. § 60-2.17(b) and (c), which requires contractors to
perform in-depth analyses of its hiring process to determine whether and where
impediments to equal employment opportunity exist, including evaluating the
contractor’s personnel activity and selection/recruitment/referral procedures to
determine whether there are gender, race, or ethnicity based disparities; and to
develop and execute action-oriented programs designed to correct any problem
areas identified in its analyses.

Specifically, Shamrock’s in-depth analyses of its hiring process allegedly failed to
identify adverse impact against female applicants for General Plant jobs, against
Black and female applicants for Cold Room Order Selector jobs, against female,
Black and white applicants for General Warehouse Nights positions, and against
Black and White applicants for Delivery Driver positions. As a result, Shamrock
was allegedly unable to demonstrate it attempted to correct or otherwise address
the hiring disparities affecting Black, White, and female applicants during the
applicable review period. As such, Shamrock’s internal audit process used during
the review period allegedly did not adequately measure the effectiveness of its
affirmative action program, particularly with regards to its hiring process and
selection decisions.

REMEDY. Within 120 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and annually
thereafter, Shamrock will perform in-depth analyses of its hiring process for
General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General
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Warehouse positions at each facility listed in Part T11.B. of this Agreement and
implement systems to accurately identify problem areas as required by 41 C.F.R. §
60-2.17(b). At a minimum, Shamrock must evaluate:

a. The workforce by organizational unit and job group to determine whether
there are problems of minority or female utilization (i.e., employment in the
unit or job group), or of minority or female distribution (i.e., placement in the
different jobs within the unit or group);

b. Personnel activity (applicant flow, hires, terminations, promotions, and other
personnel actions) to determine whether there are selection disparities; and

¢. Compensation system(s) to determine whether there are gender, race, or
ethnicity based disparities;

d. Selection, recruitment, referral, and other personnel procedures to determine
whether they result in disparities in the employment or advancement of
minorities or wemen.

If Shamrock identifies any problems pursuant to the reviews conducted above, it
will develop and execute action-oriented programs pursuant to 41 C.F.R. § 60-
2.17(b) and to attain established goals and objectives. In order for these action-
oriented programs to be effective, Shamrock must ensure that they consist of more
than following the same procedures which have previously produced inadequate
results. Furthermore, Shamrock must demonstrate that it has made good faith
efforts to remove identified barriers, expand employment opportunities, and
produce measurable results.

D. INTERNAL AUDIT AND REPORTING

1. STATEMENT OF ALLEGED VIOLATION. Shamrock allegedly failed to develop
and implement an auditing system that periodically measures the effectiveness of its
total affirmative action program, as required by 41 C.F.R § 60-2.17(d). Specifically,
Shamrock allegedly failed to adequately monitor applicant and hiring activity such
that disparities could be detected, corrected, and monitored at both its Phoenix and
Eastvale facilities.

2. REMEDY. Within 120 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and annually
thereafter, Shamrock will continue to develop and implement an internal auditing
system that periodically measures the effectiveness of its total affirmative action
program in accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-2.17(d)(1)-(4), including identifying
barriers to equal employment opportunity, particularly with regard to Black and
female applicants for and/or incumbents in General Plant, Cold Room Order
Selector, Delivery Driver, and General Warehouse positions. The internal audit and
reporting system must include the following:
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a. Monitoring records of all personnel activity including referrals, applications,
placements, transfers, promotions, terminations, and compensation, at all levels
to ensure that its nondiscriminatory policy is carried out;

b. Requiring internal reporting on a scheduled basis as to the degree to which equal
employment opportunity and organizational objectives are attained;

c. Reviewing report results with all levels of management; and

d. Advising top management of program effectiveness and submitting
recommendations, including specific steps and concrete strategies, to improve
unsatisfactory performance.

E. GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

1. STATEMENT OF ALLEGED VIOLATION. For the Phoenix facility, Shamrock
allegedly failed to develop and execute action-oriented programs designed to correct
any problem areas and to attain established goals and objectives as required by 60-
2.17(c). Specifically, Shamrock identified underutilization at its Phoenix facility, but
allegedly did not demonstrate sufficient good faith efforts to recruit qualified women
in its “GP — Production and HW — Warehouse™ job groups during the applicable
review period. During the prior-year review period of January 1, 2017 through
December 31, 2017, Shamrock established a female placement goal of 7o in the
“GP — Production” job group; however, the actual placement rate was o (placing
Bl omen, out of [ total opportunities). During the same time period, Shamrock
established a female placement goal of] % in the “HW — Warehouse” job group;
however, the actual placement rate was 6 placing [lfwomen, out of [ total
opportunities). While Shamrock did engage in general outreach and recruitment
efforts including those targeting women and minorities, these efforts were company-
wide rather than specific to the underutilized job groups identified during the review
period.

2. REMEDY. Shamrock will demonstrate good faith efforts and document existing, as
well as develop and execute additional, action-oriented programs designed to recruit
and enhance employment opportunities for women in its “GP — Production” and
“HW — Warehouse” job groups. For the “GP-Production” and “HW-Watehouse”
job groups at its Phoenix facility, Shamrock will:

a. Define the specific minimum education and experience qualifications for each
vacant position and utilize the minimum qualifications in all of its recruiting
efforts;
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. Ensure that it requests female applicants from community-based organizations
and recruitment sources within sufficient time prior to the closing date of each
vacancy;

Maintain records of all recruitment efforts, referrals, interviews, job offers,
salary offers, rejections, and reasons for rejection of persons referred and/or
interviewed for every job vacancy. Shamrock will maintain each resume and/or
application (for all applicants, including internal applicants) for a minimum of
two years from the date of making the record or personnel action involved.

. Designate an official of the company to implement its good faith efforts. If it
becomes evident that the action-oriented programs outlined above are not
effective in obtaining a significant number of qualified female applicants, the
designated official must develop new strategies to generate an adequate pool of
qualified candidates as opportunities occur.

Send notifications of openings requesting qualified female applicants for
positions in its Production and Warehouse job groups to at least the following
recruitment sources:

Fresh Start Women’s Foundation
1130 E. McDowell Road

TPl ~ ~em vy AT OCNNL
FIIUUIIIA, ML OJVuUY
hitps://www.freshstartwomen.org/

602-252-8494

Hope’s Crossing

1632 W. Camelback Road
Phoenix, AZ 85015
https://hopescrossing.org

602-795-8098

A New Leaf’s Arizona Women’s Education and Employment
4520 N. Central Ave, Suite 550

Dhnnaniv A7 QSN1D
X llUblLlA, Fo VST & SEAV Y )

hitp://www.awee.org/
602-601-7200

Maggie’s Place — The Family Success Center
4001 N. 30" Sireet

Phoenix, AZ 830164
https://www.maggiesplace.org

602-262-5555 ext. 113
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PART V, ENHANCED COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

A. The Agreement will be in effect for a five-year period beginning on the Effective Date of
the Agreement.

B. To proactively facilitate compliance with E.O. 11246, as amended, Shamrock will take the
steps described below to enhance its compliance with E.O. 11246 in the hiring of General
Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights
workers at all of its establishments employing workers in these positions operating in the
United States.

C. Shamrock will appoint a responsible individual or team to specitically evaluate the policies
and procedures Shamrock currently uses to hire General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector,
Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights workers. The responsible individual or
team will have the relevant educational background and substantial experience in
developing and implementing job-related and neutral employee hiring processes. The
responsible individual or team will conduct on-site visits, where feasible, to Shamrock’s
establishments in order to ensure a comprehensive and thorough evaluation of Shamrock’s
hiring policies and procedures for General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery
Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights. Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date
of this Agreement, Shamrock will submit to OFCCP a proposal that describes the
methodology used in the evaluation. The proposal will cover the following arcas at
Shamrock’s facilities:

Hiring Procedures

1. Procedures to recruit, screen, interview, select, reject, and hire General Plant, Cold
Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights workers
without regard to sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, race/ethnicity, color, national
origin, and religion in compliance with E.O. 11246,

2. Evaluation of recruitment efforts (including methods and sources) for General Plant,
Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warchouse Nights positions
and recommendations for additional strategies to increase the representation of
qualified Black, White, and female applicants.

3. Procedures to limit subjectivity and implicit bias in the hiring process, including
identifying objective qualifications and criteria to be used to select and/or eliminate
from further consideration persons expressing an interest in employment at each step
of the hiring process.
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. Procedures to ensure that persons expressing an interest in employment are tracked and

decisions are documented at each step in the hiring process.

. Procedures to ensure that documents are retained in accordance with 41 C.F.R. § 60-

1.12(a) and Part 60-3.

Procedures to train all employees involved in the hiring process on the policies and
practices related to Shamrock’s hiring of General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector,
Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights workers.

Procedures to ensure that adverse impact analyses are conducted in accordance with 41

C.F.R. Part 60-3, including evaluation of the individual components and qualifications
if statistical disparities exist.

. Withih one hundred and fifty (150) days after Shamrock concludes the evaluation,
Shamrock will provide a report to OFCCP to include the following:

1.

2.

A description of the evaluation conducted by Shamrock.

A summary of Shamrock’s findings regarding its current policies, procedures and
practices related to the recruitment, hiring, promotions and retention of General Plant,
Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights workers.

Shamrock’s findings and recommendations regarding each of the items set forth in the
hiring procedure above, as well as any other items included in the evaluation team’s
proposal.

Any additional recommended actions or revisions to the policies, procedures and
practices for General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General
Warehouse Nights positions to ensure equal opportunity for all persons expressing an
interest in employment.

Recommendations for training for all individuals involved in the hiring of General
Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights.

. Ifrequested by OFCCP, at a mutually-agreeable date after receipt of the Shamrock’s report,
Shamrock and OFCCP will conduct a telephone conference to review the report in detail.
The parties will jointly agree on the timing, and structure of the meeting to facilitate
maximum exchange of ideas. If necessary, the parties will agree to a timetable for any
follow-up actions resulting from this telephone conference.

. Shamrock will develop and conduct a training program, including all revised processes, to
be presented to all individuals involved in the General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector,
Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights hiring processes (i.e., recruiting,
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screening, interviewing, selection, and rejection} at Shamrock’s facility. Individuals
attending this training will include, at a minimum, all human resources recruiters,
managers, and directors; Production and Warehouse supervisors; and corporate human
resources and compliance personnel. The training will be mandatory for the personnel
identified above, and any employees who are not able to attend the in-person or via video
conferencing will be required to watch a video recording of the training. Shamrock will
ensure that new employees who are involved in the General Plant, Cold Room Order
Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights hiring processes are provided
training within ninety (90) days after assuming such a role.

. Shamrock will monitor the implementation of and results achieved from the revised
General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse
Nights hiring processes, and will provide reports to OFCCP in accordance with the
schedule outlined in Part VI.D. During the five-year period this Agreement is in effect, the
monitoring reports will indicate whether the revised hiring processes have been fully
implemented and whether the individuals involved in the revised hiring processes are
following the revised policies and procedures. The monitoring reports will also include
appropriate recommendations, if any, to alter or change the revised hiring processes, its
implementation, or training, to ensure a nondiscriminatory hiring process.

. During the five-year period, Shamrock will conduct adverse impact analyses of General
Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse Nights hiring
at Shamrock’s facilities, consistent with the requirements of 41 C.F.R. § 60-3.4 and 3.15
on at least a semi-annual basis. If Shamrock finds statistically significant disparities in
hiring General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General
Warechouse Nights workers at any facility, Shamrock will investigate the cause of the
disparities and take appropriate action, such as providing refresher training or making
additional changes to the hiring process. Shamrock will implement remedies to correct
any statistically significant disparities in hiring and report to OFCCP on actions taken.

If requested by OFCCP during the five-year period, Shamrock will agree to meet with
OFCCP once a year to discuss Shamrock’s progress in implementing the adopted
recommendations, to discuss concerns, and to continue to chart a path toward a mutually-
beneficial partnership. The parties will jointly agree on the timing, location, and structure
of the meeting to facilitate maximum exchange of ideas.

This Agreement between Shamrock and OFCCP does not provide Shamrock with any grant
of immunity or protection from its requirement to comply with non-discrimination statutes.

. This Agreement between Shamrock and OFCCP may be modified upon the written consent
of the parties, and such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.

. This Agreement is between OF CCP and Shamrock (as collectively defined above) and does
not confer any rights or benefits to any other parties, other than any successor to, parent of,
or subsidiary of Shamrock or OFCCP. In case of a disagreement over the implementation
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of this Enhanced Compliance Agreement, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith prior
to enforcement.

PART VI. REPORTING

Shamrock must submit the documents and reports described below to:

Marvin R. Jordan, District Director
Phoenix District Office

US Department of Labor, OFCCP
230 N. First Avenue, Suite 503
Phoenix, AZ 85003

A.

Within one hundred and fifty (150) calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Shamrock must submit a copy of the written revised hiring processes described in PART IV,
Paragraph A.4.a.ii. of this Agreement.

. Within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days of the Effective Date of this Agreement,

Shamrock must submit documentation that all managers, supervisors and other personnel
involved in recruiting, selecting, or tracking applicants for of General Plant, Cold Roem Order
Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General Warehouse positions at the Reviewed Establishments
have been trained on the revised hiring processes. The documentation must include the dates
of the training, the names and job titles of all attendees, an outline of the topics discussed in
the training, and the name and job title of each person who conducted the training.

Within the prescribed timeframes, Shamrock must submit all documents and information
referenced in Part [V of this Agreement.

In addition to the notifications and reports associated with the hiring violation, Shamrock
agrees to submit progress reports for each location listed in Part I11.B above as prescribed
below.

Due Date Period Covered
July 1, 2021 January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020
July 1, 2022 January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021
July 1, 2023 January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
July 1, 2024 January 1. 2023 to December 31, 2023
July 1, 2025 January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Each progress report will contain the following, as applicable:

1. Documentation of monetary payments (as applicable) to all Eligible Class Members as
specified in Part IV of this Agreement. The documentation must include the names of
Eligible Class Members who were paid, and, for each Eligible Class Member, the number
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and the amount of the check and the date the check cleared the bank. Shamrock must
provide OFCCP with proof of deposit upon request. Afier the monetary remedy has been
satisfied, this information only needs to be submitted to OFCCP once and may be omitted
from subsequent reports.

. Documentation of specific hiring activity for Eligible Class Members who were hired
into General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General Warehouse
Nights positions in accordance with this Agreement, including name, date of hire, job
title hired into, rate of pay and proof of retroactive seniority and benefits. After the hiring
obligation has been satisfied, this information only needs to be submitted to OFCCP once
and may be omitted from subsequent reports.

. For Eligible Class Members who were considered for employment but were not hired,
Shamrock will provide the reason for non-placement along with all relevant
documentation (e.g., documentation that the Eligible Class Member declined the offer).
After the hiring obligation has been satisfied, this information only needs to be submitted
to OFCCP once and may be omitted from subsequent reports,

. The total number of applicants and hires and the breakdown by race, gender and ethnic
group of applicants and hires for General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery
Driver, and General Warchouse positions during the reporting period, including all
temporary, part-time and seasonal workers who were referred to and/or assigned to work
at Shamrock by a staffing firm or employment agency. The log must contain, for each
applicant, their applicant ID, race, gender, date applied, status as an applicant or
expression of interest, disposition, stage in the hiring process where the candidate was
disqualified from further consideration, and date of hire (if applicable).

. For the General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Driver, and General
Warehouse positions, a description of the qualifications Shamrock used as a screening
device and the stage of the hiring process at which the screening device was used.

. For the General Plant, Cold Room Order Selector, Delivery Drivers, and General
Warehouse positions, the results of Shamrock’s analysis as to whether its total hiring
process has adverse impact, as defined by 41 C.F.R. § 60-3.4C and D; when the total
hiring process has an adverse impact, the results of Shamrock’s evaluation of the
individual components of the hiring process for adverse impact.

. Evidence to support the actions taken by Shamrock, where action was appropriate, after
determining that any component of the hiring process has an adverse impact on members
of any race, gender, or ethnic group.

. Evidence that all records pertaining to hiring, including job applications, screening
results, and test scores, if applicable, are being maintained as required. Shamrock must
also maintain records which justify the reason for which individual applicants were
removed from consideration or not advanced through the selection process.
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9. Documentation that Shamrock is complying with the requirements of 41 C.F.R. § 60-
2.17, including evidence Shamrock performed in-depth analyses of its total employment
process (including workforce composition, selection or other personnel procedures,
compensation systems, and any other areas that might impact the success of the
affirmative action program), developed corrective actions for any problems identified,
periodically measured the effectiveness of its total affirmative action program, and
reviewed results with management officials.

10. A list of specific problems Shamrock identified as a result of performing an in-depth
analysis of its total hiring process to determine whether or where impediments to equal
opportunity exists.

11. A list of specific action-oriented programs Shamrock has implemented to correct
problem areas as it relates to its hiring process, and to ensure there are no impediments
to equal opportunity or affirmative action.

12. Documentation (i.e., emails, letters, written responses, job announcements) of contact
with at least the community organizations and recruitment sources listed above when
Shamrock has opportunities available for employment in its Production and Warehouse
Job Group positions, demonstrating good faith efforts to recruit qualified female
applicants at Shamrock’s Phoenix facility.

13. Reports as required under Part V.

TERMINATION DATE: This Agreement will remain in effect pursuant to the terms in Part 11,
Paragraph J.

INTEGRATION CLAUSE: This Agreement represents the full Agreement between Shamrock
and OFCCP and this Agreement supersedes any other agreements, oral or written. In signing this
Agreement, neither Shamrock nor OFCCP relies upon any promise, representation of fact or law,
or other inducement that is not expressed in this Agreement. This Agreement may be modified
only by written agreement of the parties affected and may not be modified by any oral agreement.
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PART VIL. SIGNATURES

This Agreement is hereby executed by and between the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs and Shamrock Foods Company.

DATE: (0/! - 200

DATE: June 22, 2020

W.KENT MCLELLAND JANE SUHR

President Regional Director

Shamrock Foods Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs

Pacific Region
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ATTACHMENTS:

Al,

A2,

BI1.

B2.

Cl.

C2.

Eligible Class Members (Female, General Plant — Phoenix, AZ; Female and Black, Cold Reom
Order Selector — Phoenix, AZ; Black, Delivery Driver — Eastvale, CA; and White, Delivery
Driver — Eastvale, CA)

Eligible Class Members (Female, General Warehouse Nights — Eastvale, CA)

Notice to Affected Class (Female, General Plant — Phoenix, AZ; Female and Black, Cold Room
Order Selector — Phoenix, AZ; Black, Delivery Driver — Eastvale, CA; and White, Delivery
Driver — Eastvale, CA)

Notice to Affected Class (Female, General Warehouse Nights — Eastvale, CA)

Information Verification and Employment Interest Form (Female, General Plant — Phoenix, AZ;
Female and Black, Cold Room Order Selector — Phoenix, AZ; Black, Delivery Driver — Eastvale,
CA; and White, Delivery Driver — Eastvale, CA)

Information Verification and Employment Interest Form (Female, General Warehouse Nights —
Eastvale, CA)

Release of Claims Under Executive Order 11246

List of All Establishments Covered by the Scheduling Exemption
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General Warehouse and General Warehouse Nights 2017
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Shamrock
Conciliation Agreement
Attachment B1

NOTICE TO AFFECTED CLASS MEMBERS

You may be eligible to get money and a job because of a
legal settlement between SHAMROCK FOODS and the

U.S. Department of Labor

We are writing to provide information about a legal settlement between the U.S. Department of
Labor and Shamrock Foods (“Shamrock Foods ) that may benefit you. This settlement involves
claim of discrimination in hiring and our records show that you may be one of the applicants
covered by the settlement. If you take the steps described in this Notice by the deadline below you
may be eligible for a payment of back wages and/or an opportunity for a job with Shamrock Foods.

ARE YOU AFFECTED?

Black and White applicants who applied and were not hired for Delivery Driver and General
Warehouse Nights positions at Shamrock Foods’ Eastvale, California location during the period
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, are covered by this settlement.

Black and female applicants who applied and were not hired for Cold Room Order Selector
positions and female applicants who applied for General Plant positions at the Phoenix, AZ
facility during the period January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018, are also covered by this
settlement.

WHAT IS THIS SETTLEMENT ABOUT?

The U.S. Department of Labor Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)
conducted a review of Shamrock Foods’s hiring practices at the Eastvale, CA and the Phoenix,
AZ facilities during January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018. OFCCP i1s the government
agency responsible for enforcing the equal employment opportunity and affirmative action
requirements that apply to federal contractors. OFCCP alleges Shamrock Foods discriminated
against Black, White, and female applicants in hiring for the Delivery Driver, General
Warehouse Nights, Cold Room Order Selector, and General Plant positions during January 1,
2017 through December 31, 2018. Shamrock Foods denies those claims. Ultimately, although
Shamrock Foods disagreed with OFCCP’s findings, Shamrock Foods has agreed to resolve the
claims through a Conciliation Agreement. A Conciliation Agreement is a legal document that
explains the terms of an agreement between Shamrock Foods and OFCCP.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR YOU?

Because you applied for one of the affected positions during the relevant time frame, and were
not hired, this settlement may provide you with some specific benefits:



1. You may be eligible to receive a payment of at least $XXXX (before taxes). This
payment represents your share of back wages and interest Shamrock Foods is making
to settle the lawsuit. The final amount you will receive will be reduced by deductions
for items such as income tax withholding and Social Security contributions.

2. You may be eligible for a job offer. Shamrock Foods will be making job offers to
some of the individuals receiving this notification. It is not guaranteed that you will
receive a job offer. If you are interested in a job with Shamrock Foods, please express
your interest on the enclosed Interest Form.

To get these benefits, you will need to release (give up) certain legal claims, and sign the enclosed
Interest and Release forms.

WHAT ARE YOUR NEXT STEPS?
You should read this Notice and the enclosed Interest and Release forms.

Please do not ignore these documents or throw them away. Otherwise, you could miss an
opportunity to receive money and a job with Shamrock Foods.

To be eligible for a payment and job, you must complete, sign, and return both the following
enclosed documents, (1) the Interest Form and (2) the “Release of Claims Under Executive Order
11246” (Release) to:

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP — Shamrock Foods
(NAME)
(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)

DEADLINE: The documents must be postmarked by [insert actual date].

You may receive some or all of these benefits only if these forms confirm that you are one of the
individuals covered by the settlement. After correct completion and submission of these
documents, a final decision will be made about your eligibility.

If you fail to return both of the required documents by the deadline above, or if your
documents do not verify your eligibility, you will not be eligible to receive any money,
consideration for job opportunities or any other benefits that are available to you by the
settlement.

HOW CAN YOU GET MORE INFORMATION?

If you have any questions, you may contact OFCCP Area Director Hector M. Sanchez at (714)621-
1631 or @dol.gov for the Eastvale, CA facility, and OFCCP District Director
Marvin R. Jordan at (602) 514-4660 or (@dol.gov for the Phoenix, AZ facility. You
can also visit the U.S. Department of Labor website about this case at www.dol.gov/ofccp/cml.




Shamrock
Conciliation Agreement
Attachment B2

NOTICE TO AFFECTED CLASS MEMBERS

You may be eligible to get a job because of a legal
settlement between SHAMROCK FOODS and the U.S.

Department of Labor

We are writing to provide information about a legal settlement between the U.S. Department of
Labor and Shamrock Foods (“Shamrock Foods”) that may benefit you. This settlement involves
claim of discrimination in hiring and our records show that you may be one of the applicants
covered by the settlement. If you take the steps described in this Notice by the deadline below you
may be eligible for an opportunity for a job with Shamrock Foods.

ARE YOU AFFECTED?

Female applicants who applied and were not hired for General Warehouse Nights positions at
Shamrock Foods’ Eastvale, California location during the period January 1, 2017 through
December 31, 2017, are covered by this settlement.

WHAT IS THIS SETTLEMENT ABOUT?

The U.S. Department of Labor Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP)
conducted a review of Shamrock Foods’s hiring practices at the Eastvale, CA facility during the
period January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017. OFCCP is the government agency
responsible for enforcing the equal employment opportunity and affirmative action requirements
that apply to federal contractors. OFCCP alleges Shamrock Foods discriminated against female
applicants for General Warehouse Nights positions. Shamrock Foods denies those claims.
Ultimately, although Shamrock Foods disagreed with OFCCP’s findings, Shamrock Foods has
agreed to resolve the claims through a Conciliation Agreement. A Conciliation Agreement is a
legal document that explains the terms of an agreement between Shamrock Foods and OFCCP.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR YOU?

Because you applied for the affected position during the relevant time frame, and you were not
hired, this settlement may provide you with the following benefit:

1. You may be eligible for a job offer. Shamrock Foods will be making job offers to some
of the individuals receiving this notification. It is not guaranteed that you will receive a
job offer. If you are interested in a job with Shamrock Foods, please express your interest
on the enclosed Interest Form.



WHAT ARE YOUR NEXT STEPS?
You should read this Notice and the enclosed Interest Form.

Please do not ignore these documents or throw them away. Otherwise, you could miss an
opportunity to receive a job with Shamrock Foods.

To be eligible for a job, you must complete, sign, and return the enclosed Interest Form and send
to:

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP — Shamrock Foods
(NAME)
(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)

DEADLINE: The documents must be received by [insert actual date].
You may receive some or all of these benefits only if these forms confirm that you are one of the
individuals covered by the settlement. After correct completion and submission of these
documents, a final decision will be made about your eligibility.
If you fail to return the Interest Form by the deadline above, or if your documents do not

verify your eligibility, you will not be eligible to receive any consideration for job
opportunities or any other benefits that are available to you by the settlement.

HOW CAN YOU GET MORE INFORMATION?

If you have any questions, you may contact OFCCP Area Director Hector M. Sanchez at (714)621-
1631 or “’dol. gov_for the Eastvale, CA facility. You can also visit the U.S.

Department of Labor website about this case at www.dol.gov/ofccp/cml




Shamrock
Conciliation Agreement
Attachment C1

Interest Form

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING
THE INTEREST FORM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING A CLAIM TO BE CONSIDERED FOR MONEY (BACK
WAGES) AND/OR A JOB OFFER FROM THE SETTLEMENT

DEADLINE: This form must be completed and postmarked by [Insert specific date]

You may be eligible for a money payment from the settlement and you can express interest in a
job offer. You can receive a money payment even if you do not express interest in a job.

To receive benefits (such as money or a job offer), you must complete and return this Interest
Form and the enclosed Release Form. Both must be postmarked by the deadline listed above to:

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP-SHAMROCK FOODS
(NAME)

(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)

If you do not submit a completed Interest Form and Release Form on or before the deadline
above, then your claim will not be on time and you will not receive any money from this
settlement and you cannot be considered for a job offer from this settlement.
Enclosed is a stamped, pre-addressed envelope you can use.

skeksk

This Interest Form will only be used for the following purposes:

1. To confirm important information we need in order to make sure you are eligible to
receive money under this settlement and process your payment, and

2. To allow you to express interest in the jobs being offered as result of the settlement.

NOTE: This notice is only for the person it was sent to and cannot be transferred
or used by another person who is not part of the settlement.



Step 1: Please provide the following contact information to process your payment (please
PRINT legibly).

First Name:

Last Name

Any other names you have used:

Home Phone:

Cell Phone:

Email Address:

O T confirm that the address on the cover letter is correct.

[0 The address on the cover letter is not correct. My correct address is:

Address:

Please provide your social security number:

Your Social Security Number is required in order to process your payment for tax purposes.
Your Social Security Number will not be used for any other purpose.

Notify us at the address below if your address changes, or contact us if you have any
questions about this Interest form, the notice, or the settlement.

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP - SHAMROCK FOODS
(NAME)

(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)
[-XXX-XXX-XXXX



For purposes of this settlement, it is necessary to verify your gender:

[
[

] Female
] Male

For purposes of this settlement, it is necessary to verify your race:

L T e B e B s B |

] Caucasian

] African American/Black
] Hispanic

] Asian

] American Indian/Alaska Native

Step 2: Inform us if you are interested in a position:

O

O

O

Yes, I am interested in employment by Shamrock Foods.

Based on the locations and positions for which you previously applied during the covered
time periods, you will be considered for the General Warehouse Nights, Cold Room Order
Selector, or General Plant positions at the Eastvale, California or Phoenix, Arizona
locations.

No, I am not interested in employment with Shamrock Foods.

I am currently employed by Shamrock Foods.

Step 3: Sign and return along with the Release Form.

I certify the above as true and correct.

Signature Date

Printed Name



Shamrock
Conciliation Agreement
Attachment C2

Interest Form
PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING
THE INTEREST FORM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING A CLAIM TO BE CONSIDERED FOR A JOB OFFER
FROM THE SETTLEMENT

DEADLINE: This form must be completed and postmarked by [Insert specific date]
In order to be considered for a job offer, you need to express interest in a job.

To receive a job offer, you must complete and return this Interest Form. It must be postmarked
by the deadline listed above to:

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP-SHAMROCK FOODS
(NAME)

(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)

If you do not submit a completed Interest Form on or before the deadline above, then your claim
will not be on time and you cannot be considered for a job offer from this settlement.

Enclosed is a stamped, pre-addressed envelope you can use.
skskok
This Interest Form will only be used for the following purpose:

1. To confirm important information we need in order to make sure you are eligible to
receive one of the jobs being offered as result of the settlement.

NOTE: This notice is only for the person it was sent to and cannot be transferred
or used by another person who is not part of the settlement.

Step 1: Please provide the following contact information to process your interest in
employment consideration (please PRINT legibly).

First Name:




Last Name

Any other names you have used:

Home Phone:

Cell Phone:

Email Address:

O T confirm that the address on the cover letter is correct.

[0 The address on the cover letter is not correct. My correct address is:

Address:

Notify us at the address below if your address changes, or contact us if you have any
questions about this Interest form, the notice, or the settlement.

Settlement Administrator
OFCCP - SHAMROCK FOODS
(NAME)

(TITLE)
(ADDRESS)
[-XXX-XXX-XXXX

For purposes of this settlement, it is necessary to verify your gender:

[ ]Female
[ ]Male



Step 2: Inform us if you are interested in a position:
[0  Yes, I am interested in a General Warehouse Nights position with Shamrock Foods at
Eastvale, California.

O No, [ am not interested in a General Warehouse Nights position with Shamrock Foods at
Eastvale, California.

0 I am currently employed by Shamrock Foods.
Step 3: Sign and return

I certify the above as true and correct.

Signature Date

Printed Name



Shamrock
Conciliation Agreement
Attachment D

RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE ENCLOSED NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS
RELEASE. YOU MUST RETURN A SIGNED RELEASE TO RECEIVE MONEY FROM THE
SETTLEMENT

This Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 ("Release") is a legal document. This
document states that in return for Shamrock Foods Company ("Shamrock Foods") paying
you money, you agree that you will not file any lawsuit against Shamrock Foods for
allegedly violating Executive Order 11246 in its hiring practices of Cold Room Order
Selector, General Plant, General Warehouse Nights, and Delivery Driver positions. It also
says that Shamrock Foods does not admit it violated any laws enforced by OFCCP. This
Release states you had sufficient time to look at the document, to talk with others about the
document, including an attorney if you choose, and that no one pressured you into signing
the document. Finally, it states that if you do not sign and return the document by a certain
date, you will not receive any money.

In consideration of the payment of at least $XXX  (less adjustments required by law) by
Shamrock Foods to me, which I agree is acceptable, I (print name)
agree to the following.

L.

By signing this Release, I agree that [ have been made whole for any claim that could have
been brought under Executive Order 11246 relating to Shamrock Foods’ hiring practices
through the Effective Date of this Release. I hereby release Shamrock Foods, its predecessors,
successors, related entities, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates and organizations, and its
shareholders, owners, directors, officers, employees, agents, and assigns from any claim for
additional make whole relief obtained through any action based on or involving Shamrock
Foods’ hiring practices through the Effective Date of this Release that could have been brought
under Executive Order 11246. Here, make whole relief is defined as the total earnings lost,
and includes: salary or wages, overtime, premium pay and shift differentials, incentive pay,
raises, bonuses, lost sales commissions, cost-of-living increases, tips, medical and life
insurance, fringe benefits, pensions, stock options, and awards.

IL.

I understand that Shamrock Foods does not agree that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in
any way and that Shamrock Foods entered into a Conciliation Agreement with the U.S.
Department of Labor, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs ("OFCCP") and agreed
to make the payment described above to resolve alleged disparities in hiring and to resolve the
matter without further legal proceedings in the compliance reviews initiated by OFCCP related
to the facilities covered by the Conciliation Agreement. I further agree that the payment of the



aforesaid sum by Shamrock Foods to me is not to be construed as an admission of any liability
by Shamrock Foods.
1L

I declare that I have read this Release and that I have had a full opportunity to consider and
understand its terms and to consult with my advisors and seek legal advice. I further declare
that I have decided of my own free will to sign this Release.

I understand that if I do not sign this Release and return it to the contact listed on the enclosed
Claim Form by the deadline listed on the Claim Form, I will not be entitled to receive any
payment (less deductions required by law).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this document of my own free will.

Signature: Date:

Printed Name:




Attachment E
List of All Establishments Covered by the Scheduling Exemption

Business Name Address City State | Zip

Shamrock Company - Arizona

Foods 2540 N 29th Ave Phoenix AZ 85009

Beverage Manufacturing 2540 N 29th Ave Phoenix AZ 85009
3900 E Camelback Rd, Ste

Arizona National Business 300 Phoenix AZ 85018

Shamrock Company -

Arizona Systems 2926 W Encanto St Phoenix AZ 85009

Shamrock Company - New

Mexico 2 Shamrock way NW Albuquerque NM 87121

Shamrock Company - Arizona

Meats 2926 W Encanto Blvd Phoenix AZ 85009

Seafood AZ 2926 W Encanto Blvd Phoenix AZ 85009

Shamrock Company -

Colorado Systems 5005 Klamath St Denver co 80221
2228 N Black Canyon

Shamrock Farms - Dairy Highway Phoenix AZ 85009
1910 W. Mountain View

Dairy Maid Rd Phoenix AZ 85021

Dairy Virginia Plant 318 Mill Place Parkway Verona VA 24482

Shamrock Company -

California Foods 12400 Riverside Dr Eastvale CA 91752

Southern California Systems

Business 12400 Riverside Dr Eastvale CA 91752

California National Business 12400 Riverside Dr Eastvale CA 91752

Sacramento Systems

Business 856 National Dr Sacramento CA 95834

Shamrock Company -

Colorado 5199 Ivy St Commerce City | CO 80022

Colorado National Business 5199 lvy St Commerce City | CO 80022

Shamrock Company - Jensen

Foods 167 W Bromley Lane Brighton co 80601

Shamrock Company -

Colorado Meats 5199 lvy St Commerce City | CO 80022

Seafood CO 5199 Ivy St Commerce City | CO 80022

Portland Systems Business 18332 NE Rafael St Portland OR 97230
1495 North Hickory

Shamrock Foods - Boise Avenue Meridian ID 83642
3900 E Camelback Rd, Ste

Headquarters 300 Phoenix AZ 85018
3900 E Camelback Rd, Ste

Shamrock Air 300 Phoenix AZ 85018




Shamrock Farms 40034 W Clayton Rd Stanfield AZ 85172
Food Service Warehouse - 3900 E Camelback Rd, Ste

CORP 300 Phoenix AZ 85018
Food Service Warehouse -

ABQ 1221 Renaissance Albuquerque NM 87107
Food Service Warehouse -

Phoenix 2430 W Indian School Rd Phoenix AZ 85015
Food Service Warehouse - Colorado

Colorado Springs 1045 N Academy Blvd Springs co 80909
Food Service Warehouse -

Denver 460 South Lipan St Denver co 80223
Food Service Warehouse - Ft

Collins 200 W Foothills Pkwy, St D | Ft Collins co 80525
Food Service Warehouse -

Farmington 3030 E Main St, Ste E3 Farmington NM 87401
Food Service Warehouse -

Las Cruces 2489 N Main St Las Crces NM 88001
Food Service Warehouse -

Roswell 208 E College Blvd Roswell NM 88201
Food Service Warehouse - El | 11751 Gateway Blvd W.,

Paso Ste D El Paso TX 79936
Shamrock Leasing Company 2150 N 28th Ave Phoenix AZ 85009






